INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

DAIA_SHEET

Form 10-300
(Rev. 6-72)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

Plhoog  9¢Sb

Georgia

COUNTY:

Troup

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY DATE

(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)

FEB 2 4 1975

COMMON:

Liberty Hill

AND/OR HISTORIC:

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT:

Third--Jack Brinkley

STATE CODE |COUNTY: CODE
T
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
OWNE STATUS
(Check One) OWNERSHIP v TO THE PUBLIC
O District (X Building ] Public Public Acquisition: K1 Occupied Yes:
] Site [J Structure [ Private {7 In Process [J Unoccupied [X Restricted
[] Object ] Both {T] Being Considered [ Preservation work (O] Unrestricted
in progress [ No

PRE_SENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[C1 Transportation [} Comments

[] Other (Specify)

[ Agricultural 1 Government [ Park
[1.Commercial O Industrial @ Private Residence
[l Educational [ Military [CJ Religious

[J Entertainment [J Museum ] Scientific

S NAME:

Mr. and Mrs. Henry T. Woodyard

STREET AND NUMBER:

Liberty Hill

1099
c3Llvis

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

LaGrange

Geor

18

T ODF

ia

COURTHOUSE, REGIST F DEEDS, ETC:

Troup County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

Franklin Street

dnoxj,
FALNNOD

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

LaGrange

none

Georgia . ...

CODE

DATE OF SURVEY: [ Federal

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

4

o
ot
HIGWNN ANLNI

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN:

Gi6lL 7 2 S

Ilva

ATINO 3SN SdN ¥04d




(Check One)
] Excellent [ Good [] Fair [] Deteriorated [J Ruins [J Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
Ii Altered (] Unaltered ] Moved {X Original Site

CONDITION

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Liberty Hill, located on Liberty Hill Road in Troup County, was built
in the late 1830's or early 1840's by John T. Boykin, a pioneer Troup
County resident. The house, 3/4 of a mile west of the Chattahoochee River,
is situated on 150 acres of land lying in land lots 133 and 134 of the 1l4th
District.

Typical of many ante-bellum plantation houses along the river,
Liberty Hill is a white frame Greek Revival home with four fluted Doric
columns spanning the two-storey front porch. Built almost entirely from
slave labor, the house followed the popular plan of many such river plan-
tations. Consisting of two rooms separated by a central hall running the
length of the house, it includes two one-storey shed rooms at the rear of
the building, which were separated by an open porch.

The second floor plan reflects that of the first and has a front door,
which opens onto a narrow balcony that spans a length half that of the
house. The second floor door is directly above and identical to the
double door on the ground floor. Both entrances have side lights and a
transom light. The cantilevered balcony, with a rail of delicate lattice-
work design in wood, is completely covered by the roof of the porch.

Brick chimneys (now covered with cement) stand on either side of the
tall compact home, and the gable roof contains both the house and the
porch. Two sash windows flank both upper and lower entrances, and the
side elevations have five windows each. As a result of incorporating so
many windows and a long central hall, the house was able to catch the
cooling breezes from the river.

‘The interior of the home contains much of the original woodwork. The
bannister and simply-carved handrail on the open stairway are original
and are made of pine. Much of the material in the home is pine, including
the wainscoting in the living room, dining room, and hallway. The
pPanelled wainscoting was originally grained to simulate oak. Mantels are
in the Adams' style and are also of pine. Floors are original and are
beautifully maintained.

The kitchen was once a separate building to the rear of Liberty Hill.
At a later date, it was replaced by a dining room and kitchen that were
added in a wing to the left side of the house. The wing has since been
removed, and the kitchen is now in the lean-to portion of the structure.
A bath is located on the second floor where the open porch once was.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Liberty Hill is a significant example of an ante-bellum river plan-
tation that was sustained by the booming cotton industry. The success
of the plantation, like others of its day, was dependent on the unique
economy of the South prior to the Civil War, of which slavery was an
integral part. The War marked a turning point in the Southern economy
and, as a result, in the ambiance that the South exuded. The great
cotton plantations never quite regained what they had lost during the
War; and because of this, the era of the plantation and all that it con-
noted came to an abrupt end. At this time and in later years, many of
the spacious plantation houses fell victim to fire or vandalism, and
many were abandoned or adapted to serve as farm houses for Southerners
of reduced means. Liberty Hill is a surviving example of one of these
plantation houses. Built in the heyday of the South, it remained intact
throughout the War and subsequent yeéars when it has continued to be a
private residence to the present day.

The original owner and builder of Liberty Hill came to Troup County
early in the 1830's and bought land in land lg§£159 from the Moncrief
family. It was not until 1836 that John T. Bo¥kin bought the land upon
which he built his permanent residence, Liberty Hill. In the following
years, Boykin bought up additional land until, by 1862, he had over
2,000 acres of property in Troup County. His estate included 47 slaves,
in addition to personal property and livestock. The Tax Digest of 1862
lists Boykin's total property value at $52,210, quite a sum for the
time. The War, however, took its toll on Boykin, and the plantation
started on a downhill trend from which it never recovered. Boykin's
total property value for 1866 is listed in the Tax Digest at only
$15,072, quite a drop from the earlier figure. Thereafter, the land
began to diminish as Boykin or his heirs sold portions of it.

After the death of Boykin, the land and house passed to his widow,
Cynthia, who held it until her death in 1887. Cynthia's will left all
of her land, including house and belongings, to her daughter-in-law,
Elizabeth Boykin, wife of John T. Boykin, Jr., once a captain in the
Confederate Army. The house next passed to Elizabeth's daughter, Miss
Jesse W. Boykin. It was Miss Boykin who sold the property early in the
1920's, when it was acquired by Mr. and Mrs. Lindsay Ogletree, who did
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

restoration work on the building. Later owners include Mr. and Mrs. J. W.
Jones and Mr. and Mrs. Henry T. Woodyard, the latter having bought the proper-
ty in 1968. The Woodyards are the current residents of the home.

tion,. Liberty Hill is imfortant in its own right as a splendid example of
nineteenth century GreeW Revival architecture. Both in its exterior
appearance and in its plan, the house follows the established precedent for
this particular style in the South. With its long central hall running front
to back and flanking rooms on either side, the house is representative of

the plans of many such Greek Revival buildings. The elegant columned porch
is also a distinguishing characteristic of the home.

In addition to bei;;ﬁhistorically significant as an ante-bellum planta-

In both the architectural and historic sense, Liberty Hill is important
to Georgia's heritage. The house is significant as being typical of a
plantation home from a vanished era in the history of the South. It is
remarkable that the building has remained intact for over 125 years. The
value of Liberty Hill as both an example of ante-bellum Greek Revival
architecture and as a typical Southern plantation is great and deserves
recognition.
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